ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 13, 2009
3:24 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve John Coghil
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 144

"An Act relating to the Uniform Probate Code, including wlls,
trusts, nonprobate transfers, augnented estates, per sonal
representatives, and trustees; and anending Rules 3 and 8§,
Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 1, Al aska Rules of Probate
Procedure, and Rule 37.5, Alaska Rules of Admnistration.”

- MOVED HB 144 OJT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 207

"An Act increasing the allowances for injury, disability, or
heart attack payable from the fisherman's fund; and providing
for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 207 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 37

"An Act relating to the relationship between enpl oyees and | abor
organi zations; prohibiting collective bargaining contracts that
require enployees to join a |abor or enployee organization;
extending the policy and limtations set out in this Act to
public enployers and public enployees subject to the Public
Enpl oyment Rel ations Act; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2009



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 144
SHORT TITLE: UNI FORM PROBATE CODE; TRUSTS, WLLS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

02/ 23/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 09 (H L&C, JUD

04/ 08/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 08/ 09 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 13/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 207

SHORT TI TLE:. MAXI MUM BENEFI T FROM FI SHERVEN S FUND
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HARRI S

03/ 27/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 27/ 09 (H) FSH, L&C, FIN

04/ 09/ 09 (H FSH AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

04/ 09/ 09 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

04/ 09/ 09 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

04/ 10/ 09 (H) FSH RPT 3DP 3NR

04/ 10/ 09 (H) DP: BUCH, MJUNQOZ, EDGVON

04/ 10/ 09 (H) NR: JOHNSON, KAWASAKI, KELLER
04/ 13/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 37

SHORT TITLE: RI GHT TO WORK
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H L&C, JUD

03/ 27/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 27/ 09 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 08/ 09 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 08/ 09 (H Heard & Held

04/ 08/ 09 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 13/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JANE W PI ERSQN, St aff
Representative Jay Ranras
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2009



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 144 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Jay Ranras.

DAVI D SHAFTEL

At t or ney

David Shaftel Law O fices, PC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 144.

DOUG BLATTMACHR

Pr esi dent

Al aska Trust Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 144.

Rl CHARD HOMPESCH 1| |

Att or ney

Honpesch & Evans, PC

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 144.

JOHN BI TNEY, Staff

Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 207 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative John Harris.

TRENA HEI KES, Director

Di vision of Wirkers’ Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opment (DLWD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 207.

M KE MONAGLE, Admi ni strator

Fi shermen’ s Fund Advi sory & Appeal s Counci

Depart ment of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnent (DLVD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 207.

PAULA SCAVERA, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 207.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2009



GERALD MCCUNE, Lobbyi st,

Uni ted Fi shernen of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 207.

ZI NN DECKER
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 37.

JOHN BROMN

Retiree

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

M KE LI TTLEFI ELD, Busi ness Agent

Teansters Local 959

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

TI M SHARP

Busi ness Manager

Al aska District Council of Laborers, Local 942
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

RANDY GRI FFI' N
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 37.

MARK DRYGAS, Battalion Chief

Al aska Professional Firefighters Association (APFA)
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

TI M EVANS

Retiree

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

CHRI S GARCI A
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

ALLEN BUTE

Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2009



BRANDON NI CHOLS
Kenai, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

Rl CHARD HENDREN
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 37.

VI NCE BELTRAM , Presi dent

Al aska Anerican Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial
Organi zations (AFL-CI O

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

M KE NOTAR, President

Juneau and Vicinity Construction Trades Council, Inc.
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

TOMV CASHEN
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

ED FLANAGAN
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

Rl CK CANOY, Business Representative

Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

RI CK TRANI, Executive Director

Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

JED WH TTAKER
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 37.

LARRY BENSOQON, Presi dent

Aneri can Postal Wrkers Union

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

TI M MORGAN, Busi ness Representative

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2009



Teansters Local 959
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

DENNI S KNEBLE
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

SCOIT SAMMONS
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 37.

RON MCPHETERS, Presi dent

Laborers Local 341

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.

SERG O ACUNA

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 37.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:24:15 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:24 p.m Representatives Buch,
Chenaul t, Holnes, Lynn, and O son were present at the call to
order. Representatives Coghill and Neuman arrived as the
neeting was in progress.

3:24:36 PM

HB 144- UNI FORM PROBATE CODE, TRUSTS, WLLS

3:24:57 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 144, "An Act relating to the Uniform Probate
Code, including wills, trusts, nonprobate transfers, augnented
estates, personal representatives, and trustees; and anending
Rules 3 and 8, Alaska Rules of Cvil Procedure, Rule 1, Al aska
Rul es of Probate Procedure, and Rule 37.5, Alaska Rules of
Adm ni stration.”

3:25:01 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2009



JANE W PIERSON, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the prinme sponsor, Representative Jay
Ranras, stated that HB 144 will anend the Uniform Probate Code.
She explained the bill would add provisions that would allow the
settlor of a trust to designate a representative for an
incapacitated person in proceedings related to the trust
adm ni strati on. Ms. Pierson stated that HB 144 would establish
that an augnented estate does not include property transferred
to an irrevocable trust if the settlor is a discretionary
beneficiary of the trust and when the transfer is made nore than
30 days before marriage or with the consent of the decedent’s
spouse. She pointed out that this provision is simlar to
Del aware’s statutes for trusts. She stated that the value of
the estate is calculated only if the surviving spouse declines
what ever he or she is left by the will.

3:26: 29 PM

M5. PIERSON related that HB 144 also creates a procedure for the
establishnment of a will and trust validity before death. She
explained that situations may arise in which there my be a
guestion concerning a person's capacity to execute a wll or
trust, or whether the docunent was executed as a result of undue
i nfluence, duress, fraud, or m stake. The new procedure under
the bill will allow these issues to be brought before the court
while the testator or the settler is alive, and when evidence is
fresh. She nentioned that simlar procedures are allowed in
three other states. This bill would provide a venue for probate
proceeding if the decedent is not domiciled in Al aska, but
significant assets are located within the state. The passage of
HB 144 will ensure Alaska remains a premer state in which to
establish trusts and estates.

3:27:17 PM

M5. PIERSON related Section 1 of HB 144 anends AS 13.06.120(2),
which lists the situations when persons are bound by orders
binding others in proceedings under the Uniform Probate Code
(UPQ) . This provision would allow a person designated by a
trust instrument to represent and bind a born or unborn trust
beneficiary. It allows a designated person serving as a trustee
to represent and bind the beneficiaries in various ways. I t
generally does not allow a designhated person serving as a
trustee to represent and bind the beneficiaries. It generally
does not allow the designated person to represent and bind a
beneficiary if the designated person is also a beneficiary.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2009



M5. PIERSON explained that Section 1 also provides certain
persons who represent other persons under AS 13.06.120(2)(A)-(F)
are not Jliable for good faith acts and omssions to the
beneficiaries whose interests are represented or to persons
claim ng through those beneficiaries.

3:28:19 PM

M5. PIERSON stated that Section 2 anmends AS 13.12.201 (b)(9),
and nmakes granmati cal and conformng anendnents to the
definition of “transfer” for certain provisions of the Uniform
Probate Code that relates to the elective share of a surviving
spouse.

M5. PIERSON explained that Section 3 of HB 144 anmends AS
13.12. 205, which relates to a decedent’s nonprobate transfers to
ot her persons. It would also delete an irrevocable transfer in
trust with a transfer restriction from the property that is
i ncluded in the augnented estate.

3:28:48 PM

M5. PIERSON related that Section 4, proposed AS 13.12.205(hb)
would provide that the augnented estate does not include
property transferred to an irrevocable trust with a transfer
restriction if two conditions are nmet relating to the trust’s
settlors and the transfers timng.

M5. PIERSON referred to Section 5, 6, and 7, which represent
conform ng anendnents for the bill.

3:29:29 PM

M5. PIERSON stated that Section 8 adds a new set of sections
that provide for establishing the validity of wills and trusts
before the testator’s death including adding proposed sections
which she clarified by reading from the sectional analysis of
the bill as foll ows:

AS 13.12.530. Al'l ows certain persons to petition the
court to determine the validity of a will.

AS 13.12.535. Al'l ows certain persons to petition the
court to determne the validity of a wll before a
person’s death

AS 13. 12. 540. Est abl i shes the venue.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2009



AS 13.12. 545. Identifies what a petition for wll
validity nmust contain as does AS 13. 12.550.

AS 13.12.555. Authorizes a court to declare a will or
trust to be valid. Declares that the wll has ful
legal effect and nust be admitted to probate on
request of the testator’s death, unless nodified or
revoked after the court’s decl aration.

3:30: 07 PM

MS. PIERSON continued reading a sectional analysis of HB 144, as
fol |l ows:

AS 13.12.560. Makes the court’s validity declaration
bi ndi ng on ot her persons.

AS 13.12.565. Directs the court to hold a hearing
after a petition is filed. Requires the petitioner to
notify the spouse, children, and heirs of the testator
or settlor. For a wll, this provision also requires
the petitioner to notify the testator, the personal
representatives nomnated in the wll, and the
devi sees under the wll. For a trust, this provision
also requires the petitioner to notify the settlor,
and parties in interest.

AS 13.12.570. Establishes the burden of proof for the
petitions.

3:30:43 PM

MS. PIERSON continued to read a sectional analysis of HB 144, as
fol | ows:

AS 13.12.575. Allows a testator to nodify or revoke
the will or codicil after the court’s declaration.

AS 13.12.580. Allows a trust to be nodified,
term nated, revoked, or reforned after the court’s
decl arati on.

AS 13.12.585. Establ i shes which records related to a
petition are public, which are available only to
certain persons, and which are confidential. Al | ows

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 13, 2009



the court to order confidential records to be nmade
avai l abl e to ot her persons when good cause is shown.

AS 131.12.590. Defines the terns used in the new
article.

3:31:18 PM
MS. PIERSON continued to read a sectional analysis, as foll ows:

Section 10 would amend AS 13.16.410 and allow a
per sonal representative to consider discretionary
distributions to a beneficiary as being nmde from
capital gains during the year.

Section 11. Amends AS 13.36.109 and allows trustees
to consi der di scretionary di stributions to a
beneficiary as being nmade from capital gains realized
during the year.

Section 12. I ndi cates how certain provisions of the
bill anmends court rules.

Section 13. States that those sections that anmend the
court rules only take effect if the bill section 11 is
approved by a two-thirds vote.

3:32: 00 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked if these statutes were changed | ast year.

M5. PI ERSON expl ai ned that these statutes are frequently anmended
since Alaska, like Delaware, is one of the premer places for
trust estates. Additionally, since this state does not inpose a
state inconme tax there is significant benefit for trust estates
in the state. She related that $50 mllion deposited in
Al aska’s banks can be wused by its citizens and businesses.
Further, the state inposes a 6 percent tax on any insurance
prem uns sold

3:32:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH referred to AS 13.12.205, which relates to a
decedent’ s nonprobate transfers. He asked how these transfers
are conduct ed.

3:33:51 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 13, 2009



DAVI D SHAFTEL, Attorney, David Shaftel Law Ofices PC, stated
that he has been a nenber of an informal group of trust officers
who have worked with the legislature since 1997 on estate |aw.
He explained that he has woirked with legislative staff on
proposed |anguage for HB 144. He recalled M. Pierson’s
cooments on how estate legislation has assisted the state
financially. He suggested, nore inportantly, that estate law is
one area of law that every resident wll be affected by at one
point or another, either by virtue of their relatives passing
away or upon their own death

3:35:43 PM

MR. SHAFTEL related that the estate and trust statutes are very
inmportant to constituents. He highlighted the significant
changes in this bill facilitate the ability to designate a
representative who can stand in for incapacitated people. He
suggested if a person was drafting a will or trust for his
children and grandchildren that he/she nmay decide to appoint
someone. In the event that his children or grandchildren woul d

be affected by some court proceeding relating to his estate or
trust, the designated person would represent and make deci sions
for them He offered that this bill was nodeled after recent
Fl orida statutes. He opined that this bill wll help to avoid
some conpl ex proceedi ngs, including appointnent of a guardian ad
[itum to represent any mnor children, unborn grandchildren, or
i ncapaci tated chil dren.

3:37:55 PM

MR. SHAFTEL pointed out one significant change. He expl ai ned
that years from now when the Chair is elderly he may have a

relative that challenges the wll, and it my be that the
challenge is made after his death, such as an allegation of
undue influence or fraud. However, this bill would allow a
person to currently petition the court to seek a determ nation
that his/her will is carried out and ensure the person’s w shes
are nmade wthout incapacitation, wthout fraud, or undue

influence. He opined that this is unique since only three other
states have these types of proceedings called advisory opinions,
yet none are as well-witten as the provisions in HB 144.

3:40:16 PM

MR. SHAFTEL stated that many practitioners in this field often
see capacity chall enges and ot herw se unnecessary |itigation.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 13, 2009



3:41: 07 PM

MR. SHAFTEL noted this bill <clarifies that a nonresident of
Al aska can have a venue l|ocated in Alaska even for assets not
| ocated in Al aska. He nentioned that the bill nakes one tax
change, with respect to discretionary distribution of persona
representative or trust ees and al | ows t he per sonal
representative or trustee to designate those as capital gains,
which in some situations will also allow for tax savings. He
opined that this is a good statute. He urged nenbers to give
consideration to HB 144 and approve it.

3:41: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH stated he is interested in hearing the
dangers of not having a wll.

MR. SHAFTEL explained that those who do not have a wll are
considered to have died intestate, and the state provides the
mechanism of a default wll for them First, proceedings
simlar to probate proceedings would be held in state court, and
the court would appoint a nmnager for that process, an
adm nistrator for the intestate estate. He highlighted that the
adm ni strator may not be soneone the person woul d have chosen to
represent himherself. The admi nistrator would gather assets,
value them pay inconme and transfer taxes, as well as any
federal estate taxes, notify creditors, pay creditors, and
challenge faulty or false clains. Once finished, the assets
woul d be distributed according to a pattern the state has laid
out such that a surviving spouse and children would receive
specific portions of the estate.

MR. SHAFTEL offered that assets nmay end up being disbursed
outright, rather than distributed according to a trust. It is
often nore valuable to have assets held in trust, which allows
protection of the assets, provides better rmanagenent and
investnment, and allows for distributions to be nade according to
the needs of young people rather than at the whim of their
desires or urges. Additionally, he suggested a trust allows for
better tax planning. Thus, a variety of tools are available to
the person sets out their wishes in a wll. However, absent a
plan, the state provides a skeletal type of plan for you. He
mentioned his office has clients who are surviving spouses or
surviving adult children and the default probate process has
proven to be nore expensive and often resulted in poor tax

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 13, 2009



pl anning, or in assets being disbursed in directions the person
who di ed never woul d have want ed.

3:46: 38 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH said that he appreciated M. Shaftel’s
coment s. He acknowl edged that these are very inportant issues
to consider.

3:47:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred to Section 3 of HB 144, which
relates to descendents nonprobate asset transfers to others. He
then referred to page 6, lines 11 to 13 which renoves | anguage
that reads “, |NCLUDI NG AN | RREVOCABLE TRANSFER IN TRUST WTH A
TRANSFER RESTRICTION UNDER AS 34.40 110(a),” and asked for
clarification.

MR. SHAFTEL explained that this provision deals with a very
narrow right, called the wwdow s election. He explained that in
the event a person does not provide for his/her spouse in the
will, the spouse can take one-third of the conbined assets of
the famly. The augnmented estate is conprised of what is
gat hered together and represents the entire estate. He pointed
out that a type of trust was initiated in 1997 in Al aska. He
noted that 11 other states inplenented this provision, which is
an irrevocable trust. He related a scenario in which a person
created the trust. He offered that the person could be a
di scretionary beneficiary of the trust, and could place assets
into trust, yet creditors are prohibited from accessing the
assets in the trust. He explained that nobst states allow a
self-settled trust, in which a person places assets in the
trust, but creditors can reach the assets to the maxi num extent
that the trustee can make distributions. Thus, in that scenario
a trustee has absolute discretion to make distributions to a
person, a spouse, and their children, and the nmaxi rum anount
woul d be all of the trust’s assets. Therefore, a creditor could
reach all of the assets in that trust.

3:50:31 PM

MR. SHAFTEL related that the Al aska estate |aw changed in 1997,
such that a trust is not to avoid creditors at the tinme the
trust is established. The purpose in establishing a trust is to
be assured that funds placed in the trust are safe in the event
of an accidental death. He reiterated that a trust does not
protect against existing creditors. He stated that if a trust

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 13, 2009



is created 30 days prior to a nmarriage, or if a spouse consents
to a trust after the marriage, the trust funds are protected
from any spousal clains during a divorce. He opined that this
option benefits any children invol ved.

3:52: 20 PM

MR. SHAFTEL indicated that the informal group he previously
menti oned had inadvertently failed to conform to the wdow s
el ection. He explained the changes contained Section 3 and 4 or
HB 144 renedy that om ssion. In the scenario in which a person
created a trust prior to marriage, placed assets in the trust,
and designated the beneficiaries and disbursenent, when the
person dies, the wfe could elect against the estate. He
referred to the provision in question and stated that the
wi dow s el ection would prevent the spouse fromincluding in the
augnented estate any trust created prior to marriage, nor could
she include in the augnented estate any trust she consented to
after the marriage. Those are the changes contained in Sections
3 and 4 of the bill, he said.

3:53: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated he had was unaware of the w dow s

trust issue and related that he would consider this provision
further.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES sai d her question was al ready answered.

DOUG BLATTMACHR, President, Al aska Trust Conpany, offered his
strong support for HB 144.

RI CHARD HOWMPESCH |1, Attorney, Honpesch, & Evans, PC, noted that
one of his clients has a son who nmay contest his/her wll.

3:56: 01 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 144.

3:56:48 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to report HB 144 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

not e. There being no objection, HB 144 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Comrttee.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 13, 2009



3:57: 38 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from3:57 p.m to 3:59 p.m
3:59:41 PM

HB 207- MAXI MUM BENEFI T FROM FI SHERMEN S FUND

3:59:42 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 207, "An Act increasing the allowances for
injury, disability, or heart attack payable from the fisherman's
fund; and providing for an effective date."

3:59:44 PM

JOHN BITNEY, Staff, Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the prine sponsor, Representative John
Harris, stated that the Alaska Fisherman's Fund provides
services simlar to Wrkers' Conpensation for fishernen. He
stated that the upper |limt in state | aw was established in 1959
at $2,500. Health care costs have risen since that tinme and

HB 207 woul d i ncrease the anount of the cap to $10, 000.

4:00: 49 PM

MR. BITNEY referred to Section 1 of AS 23.35.140 (a) of HB 144,

whi ch read: “Except for conpelling reasons...” and explained
that this provision sets out conditions for the use of the
Al aska Fisherman’s Fund (AKFF). He pointed out the process,

such that the Fishernmen’s Fund Advisory & Appeals Council would
discuss a fisherman’s claim to determ ne whether to award a
claim beyond the cap. He explained an injured fishernen or
famly must go through the claim process for consideration of
conpensati on beyond the cap. He opined that raising the cap’s

[imt would help speed up the processing of clains. He noted
that the clains are paid from fees commercial fishernmen rem:t
for crew licenses and permts. He related his understanding

that the AKFF balance is currently $11 mllion. He advised that
sonme nmanagenent provisions are also in place in the event that
the fund is drawn down by subsequent clains. Thus, additiona
review can be provided, if necessary, to avoid raising the
fishernen’s license and permt fees.

4:03:13 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- April 13, 2009



MR. BITNEY, in response to Representative Neuman, answered that
al though at today’s prices the cap on the total allowance could
be set at $18,000, and that the reason $10,000 was sel ected was
to provide for an increase in the cap but not to increase the
cap to the extent that clainms mght force a subsequent increase
in fishernen’s license and permt fees. The goal is to keep the
fees paid into the fund by commercial fishernen at the sane
level. In further response to Representative Neuman, M. Bitney
agreed that $10,000 was a reasonable estimate for the cap on the
total allowance for an injury or disablenment.

4:04:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how many clains have been nmade to
conpensate fishernmen for injury or disablenent beyond the
current cap of $2,500.

MR. BITNEY said he was not certain. He recalled testinony in a
prior committee that at the upper end a claim for $100,000 was
made by a clai mant who suffered congestive heart failure.

4:05:17 PM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL clarified that he was interested in the
nunber of individuals who asked for consideration beyond the
$2, 500 cap.

MR BITNEY said he did not know.

MR. BUCH interjected that he is also a nenber of the House
Special Commttee on Fisheries. He recalled that Trena Heikes,
Director, Division of Wrkers’ Conpensation previously provided
details to the commttee

4:05:49 PM

TRENA HEIKES, Director, Division of Wrkers’ Conpensation
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), stated that
M. Mke Mnagle could answer any statistical questions for the
committee nenbers on this matter.

4:06: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked for <clarification of how many
i ndi vi dual clainms exceeded the $2,500 cap.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 13, 2009



M KE MONAGLE, Admi nistrator, Fishernen’s Fund Advisory & Appeals
Council, Departnent of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnment (DLWD),
related that in FY 09 about 60 clains were nmade that ranged
bet ween $2,500 and $10,000 to the Fishernen’s Fund. He reviewed
historical statistics for clains that exceeded the $2,500 cap
such that 63 clains were made in FY 08 and 65 clains were nmade
in FY 07. He related his understanding that between 50 to 70

clains per year are requested that fall between $2,500 and
$10, 000. However, he noted that when the departnent advises
claimants that they have exceeded the limt and nust fill out

addi ti onal paperwork, the fisherman tends not to follow through
with the claim He surm sed that what has been happening is the
claimant will pay for his/her out-of-pocket expenses for
legitimate clainms rather than pursue the claim He expl ai ned
that clains that exceed $10,000 tend to be pursued. Bet ween 26
and 30 claims range from $20,000 to $200,000, which are
considered catastrophic clains, are reviewed by the Fishernmen’s
Fund Advi sory & Appeals Council (FFAA) each year. Wile is rare
to have clains of that magnitude approved, the FFAA council nust
consi der each claim Since the FFAA council neets twi ce a year
soneone seeking nedical treatnent or nedical reinbursenent nust
wait six nonths for approval.

4:09:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL related his understanding that it is a
matter of severity. He stated that the $10,000 figure could be
considered a baseline rather than a cap. He asked whether M.
Monagl e could speculate on the nunmber of cases that would be
pai d anyway.

MR. MONAGLE answered that he was not certain he understood the
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that currently the cap is set
at $2,500, so generally when a fisherman makes an application
the claim is approved up to that anount. He understood that
under HB 207 the cap would be increased to $10, 000. He asked
whet her $10,000 is sufficient given current nedical costs or if
typical clainms would probably exceed the $10,000 anount and the
claimant would still need to petition the council for approval.

MR. MONAGLE explained that the division reviewed the basic
claim He related a scenario in which a person strains his/her

back. |f the doctor advises the patient that he wll need a
magnetic resonance imaging (M), the test could cost from
$2,500 to $4,000 in Al aska. | f subsequent office visits and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 13, 2009



physi cal therapy were required, the claim could easily reach
$5,000 to 6, 000. He stated that back strain is a conmon
occurrence for fishernmen as an occupational injury. He offered
his belief that the $10,000 was selected to acconmpbdate the
typi cal cost of the nobst common cl ai ns.

4:11: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that he would like to know the
reason for an allowance of nore than $10, 000. He asked if a
claimwere nmade for nore than the cap, i the claimnt would need

board approval .

MR. MONAGLE expl ained that the division admnistratively screens
claims for conpliance and eligibility. The division conducts a
prelimnary investigation to ensure that the claimis a valid
claim He agreed a claim exceeding the cap would require FFAA
counci | approval .

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL rel ated hi s under st andi ng t hat
adm nistratively typical injuries would be covered within the
$10, 000 al l owance, but that in instances in which a fishernman
suffered a heart attack, the amount would not cover it. He
suggested that as long as the hurdle is not insurnountable, the
$10, 000 seened reasonabl e. He reiterated that he is sinply
trying to gauge that anount.

4:13: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH recalled testinony given before the House
Fisheries commttee such that the Fishernen’s Fund paid out
several of the largest clainms in the history of the fund this
past year. He further recalled that about $250,000 collectively
was pai d.

M5. HEIKES answered yes. She offered that the FFAA council
recently approved paynent of $162,000 of $205,000 in nedical
expenses and in another case paid approxinmately $100,000 to a
fisherman who lost his armin a w nch accident.

REPRESENTATIVE BUCH related  his understanding that t he

Fi shermen’s Fund has had a cap of $2,500 for two decades. He
noted that the Fishernmen’s Fund currently has a balance of $11
mllion. He offered his belief that the increase in the
al l omance for injury or disabl enent IS reasonabl e, and
considering the amount of fees collected that raising the cap
will still represent a sustainable limt. He asked if the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 13, 2009



Department of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnment (DLWD) agrees wth
t he proposed cap.

M5. HEIKES stated that the DLWD supports HB 207. She rel ated
that the fund currently consists of $11.4 mllion. In the past
few years, the Fishernen’s Fund has had a $100,000 deficit.
However, given the current revenue and the fund balance, the
department does not anticipate any problem she said.

4:14:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT referred to the $11.4 mllion fund
bal ance. He referred to the bill sponsor statenent which
outlines that crew nenbers each pay $50 for their license. He
inquired as to the average payout fromthe Fishernen’ s Fund.

4:15: 22 PM

MR. MONAGLE provided statistics from the Fisherman’s Fund such
that in FY 08, 766 clains were paid with an average claim of
$1,075 and a total of $823,000 in benefits. He advi sed that
about 24 clains were made beyond the $2,500 cap, and the anmounts
varied from $3,000 up, with several in excess of $100,000. The
FFAA council typically approves between $200,000 and $300, 000 at
its sem -annual neetings for extended benefit requests. Thus,
the FFAA council typically approves approximtely $300,000 to
$400, 000 in total clains per year.

MR. MONAGLE, in response to Representative Chenault, answered
that the FY 08 revenue for the Fisherman’s Fund was $1, 440, 000.

4:17:27 PM

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), stated that
t he adm ni stration supports HB 207.

4:18: 06 PM

GERALD MCCUNE, Lobbyist, United Fishermen of Alaska (UFA),
stated that all 37 fishing groups that conprise UFA support this

bill. He provided additional information on fishernen’s |icense
f ees. He stated that $23.40 of the $50 crewrenber’s |icense
fees is paid into the fund. Currently, fishermen’s crewnrenber

license fees are capped at $50. He recalled the admnistrative
fee cost is $3.07. He offered that he also net with the FFAA
Council for three days. This bill infornms fishernen and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 13, 2009



hospitals that the allowance for injury or disablement is

increasing from $2,500 to $10, 000. It helps fishermen to know
they have a little nore flexibility before they nust petition
the FFAA Council for paynent. This bill represents a good

conprom se since the UFA does not wish to burden the Fishernmen’s
Fund. He recalled that he suggested to the DLWD and the FFAA
that if HB 207 becones |law the Fishernmen’s Fund should be

nmonitored to ensure that it has sufficient funds. He offered
that he spoke to the Commercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion with
respect the possibility of raising license fees. However, at
this tine nonitoring the Fishernmen’s Fund should suffice since
t he bal ance of the fund is $11.4 million, he said.

4:19:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH enphasized that there is not a cap on
paynents, but a total al l omance of $10, 000, except for
conpelling reasons, at which tine the payouts can exceed the
$10, 000 subject to the FFAA Council determ nation.

MR MCCUNE clarified that 39 percent of comercial fishernen
fees are paid into the fund, but the fees are capped at $50
which is the total amount that each comrercial fishernen
currently pays into the Fishernmen’s Fund. He further agreed
that this was not a cap on the payout.

4:20:57 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on closed HB 207.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to report HB 207, 26-LS0801\ A out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 207 was reported
fromthe House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

4:21:53 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:21 p.m to 4:24 p.m
4:23.:49 PM

hb37
HB 37- RI GHT TO WORK

4:23:51 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 13, 2009



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 37, "An Act relating to the relationship between
enpl oyees and | abor or gani zat i ons; prohibiting «collective
bargai ning contracts that require enployees to join a |abor or
enpl oyee organi zation; extending the policy and limtations set
out in this Act to public enployers and public enpl oyees subject
to the Public Enploynent Relations Act; and providing for an
effective date.”

4:23:54 PM

CHAIR OLSON stated that the committee would take public
t esti nony. He noted that nmany people who wanted to testify did
not get an opportunity to do so at the |ast hearing.

4:24:15 PM

ZINN DECKER stated that he is a 40-year Al aska resident and a
union electrician. He expressed concern with HB 37, since it
affects his union’s ability to negotiate a |living wage, provide
adequate retirement to allow his famly to remain in Al aska, and

also provide sufficient nedical coverage. He offered that
nonuni on enpl oyees have 401(k) plans, but that is not nearly
enough for retirenent. He opined that HB 37 would | ower wages,
medi cal and retirenent benefits for union and nonunion
enpl oyees. The bill does not allow people to keep up wth
inflation costs and the higher <cost of |Iliving in Al aska.

Enacting HB 37 into |law would be a bad decision as states that
have Right to Wrk laws do not adnmit to |ower wages, nedical
benefits, or insufficient retirenent plans.

4:26:20 PM

JOHN BROWN stated he is a retired operating engineer. He opined
that HB 37 does not have anything to do with the Right to Wrk
and this legislation has been around for nany years. He stated
that the bill wuld allow people to obtain something for
not hi ng, which is wong. He opined the fact is that no matter
what industry, a person working under a union contract wll mnmake
30 to 35 percent nore in wages and benefits. He stressed there
is a value to a union contract. However, it costs funds to put
a union plan into place. This bill would allow individuals to
decide to take the benefits but not pay anything for it. He
opined that the unions ask enployees to pay a fair share. He
stated that no one has to join, but they nust pay fees which
generally range from two and four percent. He al so stated that
the unions are good for everyone, including comunities since

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 13, 2009



wages create a ripple effect through the econony. He wurged
menbers to not support HB 37.

M KE LI TTLEFI ELD, Business Agent, Teansters Local 959, stated
that he is a nenber of Teansters Local 959. He offered that the
Teansters Local 959 is opposed to HB 37. He cited statistics
from the U S. Departnment of Labor and extrapolated that HB 37
woul d reduce wages for working famlies by nearly $5,500 per
year, increase poverty rates by over 12.5 percent, increase
those w thout health insurance by 21 percent, and increase
infant nortality by 16 percent. Lastly, nonunion workers have a
51 percent higher death and injury rate on the job. He opi ned
that this bill is a direct attack on wunions and working
Al askans. He said, “I just don't think this |egislation needs
to be passed.”

4:30: 00 PM

TIM SHARP, Busi ness Manager, Alaska District Council of
Laborers, Local 942, stated that on behalf of 5,000 working
Al aska, he wi shed to speak in opposition to HB 37. He expressed
concern that with issues Alaska is facing such as the gasline,
energy concerns, and a huge recession, that sonmeone would choose
to fight with organized |abor in Al aska. “Right to Wrk for
| ess” | aws speak for thenselves, as do the organi zed | abor | aws,
which drive up better wages, benefits, and working conditions.
“I't seens that sonme of our legislators have decided the real
problem in Alaska is that working people in this state are
maki ng too nuch noney so they want to bring the average wage
down for all Al askan workers - union and nonunion.” The "Ri ght
to Wrk for less" law is designed by business to |egislatively
kill or neuter unions, the only remaining viable voice for the
American worker. \When this has happened in other states, wages
dropped or staggered and benefits atrophied. “Why woul d anyone
want this for Al askans,” he asked. Nationw de, unions represent
only 12 to 14 percent of the American workforce, but in Al aska
uni ons represent 20 to 25 percent of the workforce. The average

wages and benefits show the results of the denographics. As
recently as three weeks ago a national poll in Parade nagazine
showed that 90 percent of Anericans still support the need for

| abor unions; they don’t support the need for weakened unions.
“It’s curious to nme that sone of the very sane people that

oppose mninmum wage increases, inproved safety and health
st andar ds, prevailing wage standards, and project | abor
agreenents are connected with sponsoring this bill,” he said.

Sonme people look for fights and problens to cover up and take
the people’s focus away from the truly inportant issues for

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 13, 2009



Al aska. There’s an old Irish saying that goes, "May the devi
take the toes of all our foes that we would know them by their

I'i nmpi ng. As far as our |abor organization goes anyone that
votes to support the "Right to Wrk for less" law for Al askans
will be seen as linping," he said. The union record speaks for
itself. "Pl ease vote against HB 37. It’s bad for unions, bad

for workers, and bad for Al aska,” he said.
4:33:02 PM

RANDY GRIFFIN opined that he is in favor of HB 37 since he is
al so pro-freedom He stated that the United States is supposed
to be a place of freedom and Alaska is supposed to be the |and
of the free. He opined that freedom neans that one individua
can make a deal with another w thout guns pointed at our heads

or any coercion directed from our federal gover nnent .
Additionally, he stated that he supports the right of private
property. He offered his belief that people have |ost many
freedons in this country, but still retains the ability to

testify. He offered that he has worked as a union nenber in the
1970s, and was also a laborer during construction of the Trans-
Al aska Pipeline System He further stated that he is currently
a nonunion worker in building maintenance. He opined that the
1935 National Labor Relations Act is wong or at |east aspects
of it are wong. He related that the first |abor act, the
Nat i onal | ndustri al Recovery Act was struck down as
unconstitutional. He said:

Now, union people are good. And everybody wants good
wor ki ng condi tions. And so do I, and high wages.
But, it’s whether we stick a gun at soneone’s head to
get them That’s what’s wrong. The unions, if they
get out of hand they can destroy the steel industry,
the auto industry, and a lot of people think that the
uni ons rai se wages. They certainly do but they don’t

raise t he t ot al productivity of t he nati on.
Therefore, they don't raise the whole lot of the
votes. | see |’ve gone over the time and | don’'t want

to be unfair.
MR. GRIFFIN urged the conmttee to vote yes on HB 37.
4:35:29 PM
MARK  DRYGAS, Battalion  Chief, Al aska  Prof essional Fire

Association (APFA) stated that the nearly 500 APFA nenbers
respond to 75 percent of all 911 calls in Al aska. He stated

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- April 13, 2009



that he is opposed to HB 37. He recalled earlier testinony by

the bill’s sponsor, and advised that there is not any
prohibition for any of its nenbers to volunteer for any
volunteer fire departnment. He related his understanding that in

the past 20 years no one has been disciplined for doing so. He
hi ghlighted that this practice happens in Fairbanks and in many
| ocations in the state.

4:36:47 PM

TIM EVANS stated that he is very opposed to HB 37. He offered
some reasons for his opposition including that all wunion and
nonuni on wages and benefits would be reduced, and his belief
that 21 percent of Right to Wrk states |ack health insurance.
He related that safety and health standards are reduced in non
free bargaining unit states. He opined that deaths are 51
percent higher in Right to Wrk states. He asked why soneone
shoul d enjoy the benefits of a bargaining unit and not pay their
fair share since unions provide the sane representation for
nonuni on enpl oyees. He further opined that unions offer better
wages, benefits, and representation. The majority of enployees
woul d be harnmed if sone enployees do not pay for representation
It is not workers who benefit from Right to Wrk |egislation,
but the greed of corporation and |arge contractors. He asked
commttee nenbers to please vote no on HB 37

4:38:41 PM

CHRI'S GARCI A stated that he is opposed to HB 37. He said he has
worked in Right to Wrk states. “Calling Right to Wrk right to

work would be like putting a euthanasia bill or a pro-abortion
bill in the legislature and calling it right to life,” he said.
He also urged nenbers to oppose HB 37. In response to Chair

Oson, M. Garcia remarked that he is also in favor of HB 207,
t he Maxi mum Benefit from Fi shernen's Fund bill.

4:39:48 PM

ALLEN BUTE stated that he is totally against HB 37. He said he
just returned from Ari zona and where people are |ooking for work
at $4 and $5 an hour. If this bill passes it wll bring people
into the state from India and China, he said. The only reason
he can live here is because he receives a decent retirement. |If
menbers are serious about |abor issues, local hire is an issue
the legislature should address. He said that when people cone
up from Salt Lake City, they go right to the North Sl ope. The
only way control this is through the project |abor agreenents.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- April 13, 2009



In response to Representative Buch, he stated that he is
retired. “Don’t pass this bill, whatever you do,” he said.

4:42:39 PM

BRANDON NICHOLS stated he is a nenber of Internationa
Br ot herhood of Electrical Wrkers (1BEW. He said that he is
strongly opposed to HB 37. Uni ons have been a great asset to
our workers since they provide inproved safety, good wages, and
medi cal benefits. Union friendly states have higher wages and
nore nedical coverage and union conpanies are nuch nore
prosperous, he stated. He offered that he cannot think of a
single country opposed to unions that the U S. should try to
enul ate. He urged nenbers not to support HB 37.

4:43: 46 PM

RI CHARD HENDREN stated that he is an Al askan citizen. He
offered his belief that HB 37 restores liberty to Alaska's
citizens. He suggested that nenbers swore an oath of office to
uphol d the constitution and today nenbers have an opportunity to
do so. He opined that Alaska' s constitution is dedicated to the
principles that all persons have a natural right to life,
liberty, and the pursuit of happiness and the enjoynent of the
rewards of their own industry. Elected officials are entrusted
to uphold these rights. The restrictions inposed in |aw nust be
necessary to protect citizens’ rights and nust not violate
people’s rights. He stated that the [federal law] as witten
requires enployees to nmke paynents to private organizations
they may or may not support, even if it against their religious
bel i ef s. He said he is also opposed to union dues. Thi s
federal law is patently unjust. Uni ons paint bleak pictures of
Right to Wrk states, he said. He urged nenbers to respect
their oaths and support the rights of citizens.

4:46: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked since he is “standing up for hinself,”
i f anyone el se stands up for him

VR. HENDREN stated that Representative Buch does as a
| egi sl ator.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH expl ai ned that he previously has worked as a

union organizer. In that capacity, his job was to represent the
unrepresented workers and he provided that service for

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- April 13, 2009



unrepresented workers in his region. He stood up for al
wor kers, including workers |ike M. Hendren, he said.

4:48: 13 PM

VINCE BELTRAM , President, Al aska Anerican Federation of Labor
and Congress of Industrial Organizations (AFL-CIO, nentioned
that at the last hearing over 30 people were at the Anchorage
Legislative Information Ofice (LIO to testify but were unable
to do so. He expressed concern that testifiers were limted to
testinmony tinme, yet representatives from the national Right to
Wrk cormmittee were allowed nore tinme to testify.

CHAIR OLSON offered that a fornmer conm ssioner testified for an
even |onger tine. Additionally, he noted that sone people are
not testifying as public menbers, but are testifying at the
request of the sponsor.

MR. BELTRAM quoted statistics such that in Right to Wrk states
wonen receive 25 percent less in wages, African Anericans earn
22.5 percent |less, and H spanic workers earn 37 percent less in

wages. Additionally, the disparity between union and nonunion
workers is over 30 percent. He opined that this bill would have
a negative inpact on wonen and people of color. He related that

no one is forced to join unions as that right is guaranteed by
| aw and has been settled by the U S. Suprenme Court. He referred
to sone cases such as the U S. Suprene Court case, 373 U S. 734,
Nat i onal Labor Rel ations Board v. General Mdtors Corporation, or
Communi cations Workers v. Beck, 487 U S. 735 (1988). Thus, he
opined that the right to not join a union is a noot point.

MR. BELTRAM opined that the National Right to Wrk Committee
(NRTWC) committee pronotes these bills around the country and
are funded by big corporate businesses. He further opined that
one of their mnmain spokesperson has been billionaire Steve
For bes. He offered his belief that the stance of acting as
t hough the organi zation cares about workers seens disingenuous
to him He said:

Ri ght to Wrk Jlaws have nothing to do wth
constitutional freedons or personal |iberties as the
gentlenmen just nmentioned. This legislation is nothing
nore than a thinly veiled attenpt to allow free riders
to get all the benefits wthout paying their fair

share. And as Representative Coghill questioned
accurately and assessed workers who opt not to pay
dues. They basically get the full benefit of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- April 13, 2009



increases to wages and other fringe benefits w thout
investing in any of the costs associated with that
representation whatsoever. And that is flat out un-
Ameri can. Just to sunmari ze: It’s already |egal for
people to refuse to join a union if they choose and
refuse to pay the portion of dues that mght go
towards the union’s political activity. Right to Wrk
aws hurts union workers as well as nonunion workers.
They hurt wonmen and mnorities nore severely than
others. And it would hurt Al aska businesses. And al
the credible data show negative econom c inpacts when
Right to Wrk law is passed. Al aska deserves better
and | encourage you not to pass this bill out of
commttee. Thank you.

4:52:26 PM

CHAI R OLSON enphasi zed that it is not his intention to nove this
bill until everyone has weighed in on this issue.

MR. BELTRAM suggested there were nany people who still wish to

testify on this bill.
4:53: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN stated he has never been a uni on worker.
He asked if M. Beltram was calling himun-Anmerican.

MR. BELTRAM answered no. He offered his belief that it would
be un-Anerican to pass a law |li ke this.

4:54: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN related information from the United Food
and Commercial Wrkers (UFCW. He stated that the retirenent
benefit actuarial rate has been reduced to zero percent this
year. That neans the plan does not provide any additional
benefits after March 9. He discussed the actuarial rates. He
stated that the actuarial rate relates to the stock market. He
offered that the point he wants to make is that no one wants to
see a reduction, but the state noved from Tier | to Tier |V for
t he sane reason. He highlighted that everyone is hurt during a
bad econony and everyone is forced to nmke tough decisions on
benefit rates and retirenment anounts.

MR. BELTRAM said that it is not uncommon for pension funds to
have to adjust their actuarial assunptions depending on what is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- April 13, 2009



happening in the narket. He agreed that in good years they have
i ncreased benefits. The reason the econony has declined is due
to poor investnments nade with the Anerican taxpayers' pension
funds. \Wall Street investors made bad deci sions. Now everyone
nmust bear the brunt of those deci sions. He opined workers did
not have enough voice in the mtter. He further opined that
passing HB 37 would exacerbate the problem Defined benefit
pl ans have suffered, but have done significantly better than
defined contribution plans. He stated that nonunion nenbers are
generally in a defined contribution plan.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN offered his belief with respect to pension
funds that there are no guarantees for union or nonunion
wor ker s.

4:57:41 PM

M KE NOTAR, President, Juneau and Vicinity Construction Trades
Council, 1Inc., highlighted his view that HB 37 is a proposed
abom nation on the state and its working people. He opined that
the bill was not filed on behalf of working famlies. He
further opined that HB 37 would make Alaska a Right to Wrk
state, which is an appalling msnoner since workers have an
i nherent Right to Work. He read from prepared notes:

It should sinply be called work for |Iess. This is
just union busting disguised with a nice sounding
| abel . These I|laws weaken unions’ abilities to

collectively bargain by prohibiting union security
provisions in collective bargaining agreenents both
approved by the mjority of enployees and the
enpl oyer. These provisions provide that all that
benefit from a collective bargaining agreenent should
pay their fair share of the costs of that union
representation. In the U 'S, Suprene Court decision in
1977, Abood v. Detroit Board of Education, the court
said, “A union shop arrangenent has been thought to
distribute fairly the cost of these representative
activities anong those who benefit and it counteracts
the incentive that enployees mght otherwi se have to

becone free riders. To refuse to contribute to the
uni on whi |l e obt ai ni ng benefits from uni on
representation t hat necessarily accrue to al

enpl oyees.” Wrst of all these laws translate into

| ower wages and benefits, a dimnished standard of
living, and substandard |egal protections for workers
in those states with these laws. Let’s renenber, when

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- April 13, 2009



wages fall, so do dollars circulating in Al aska's
econony, certainly not sonmething we presently need
given the state of our national and state econom es.
Al aska doesn’t want or need this regressive sort of
legislation. HB 37 is a dreadful public policy and is
not being asked for by working Al askans. | urge you
all to vote against passing it out of commttee.

5:00: 00 PM

TOM CASHEN stated that he is a retired nmenber of the
| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW and a
former comm ssioner of the Alaska Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DLVD). He related that he spent a
lifetime in |abor novenent in Al aska. He informed nenbers that
one of the electrical industry training centers in Anchorage is
named “Tom Cashen Electrical Training Center”. He said he'd
like to add his nane to the list of people who oppose HB 37.

5:01: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH thanked M. Cashen for his former service
and hi s endeavor on behalf of workers across the state.

5:01:41 PM
The conmmttee took an at-ease from5:01 p.m to 5:02 p.m
5:02: 28 PM

ED FLANAGAN stated that he also is a former Comm ssioner of the
Al aska Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD). He
joined his colleagues in opposing HB 37. He recalled that he
was the DCOL comm ssioner in 2000 when the first Right to Wrk
bill was introduced. He characterized it as a sad day when the
bill had a hearing before the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee. He also recalled that the issue cane up during
Al aska’ s Constitutional Convention. He offered his belief that
Representative Coghill would have been one of 40 who voted to
oppose the issue at that tine. He offered his belief that
menbers decided that Right to Wirk legislation is the last thing
Al aska needed. He further opined that the Republican
| egislators “ran the punk out of the room” He also recalled
el oquent testinony given today to provide reasons to support
uni on workers. He asked Chair O son to “get everybody heard on
this, M. Chairman.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- April 13, 2009



5:04:39 PM

CHAIR OLSON reassured M. Flanagan that the commttee would not
be taking action on HB 37 until everyone who wants to have an
opportunity to can weigh in on the bill.

5:05: 07 PM

RI CK CANOY, Business Representative, Teansters Local 959, stated
that he cane to Alaska from a Right to Wrk state and sone of
his famly nenbers have endured hardships due to m sguided |aws
such as the Right to Work bills. He recalled testinony on how
unions and non-unions are inpacted by R ght to Wrk bills
including reduction in wages and benefits. He nentioned this
i ssue conpounds the difficulties for unions to negotiate strong
agreenents. Al aska faces wuncertain economcs, and he cannot
think of a worse tinme to consider such an ill conceived notion
as HB 37, he said. Union workers in Al aska have provided
stellar |abor and services for Al askans. He also said he thinks
that this is quite a troubl esone payback to attenpt to derail
the faithful workers that are represented by organized |abor
organi zations in this state. He inplored nenbers to not pass
this bill out of conmittee. “Kill this, and nmaybe do this as a
show of gratitude. And thanks to those who preceded us and
those who are going to work with us side by side now and wil
follow us in the future. G ve us the opportunity to get the
best for our people that they nmay give the best back to the
state,” he said.

5:07:28 PM

RICK TRANI, Executive Director, Teansters Local 959, urged
menbers to vote in opposition to HB 37. He speculated that this
bill would subvert the collective bargaining process. He opined
that workplaces offering union wages have better health care

wages, benefits, and work rules. He argued that unions have a
nore productive workforce and are held to that standard. Thus,
unions ask for better wages and conditions. He opined that
uni ons have negotiated better terns of enploynent contract after
contract and these gains are solidified and passed on to
generations of successive enployees. The coll ective bargaining
process which secures benefits and wages is dependent upon
enpl oyees to participate as a whole, and added that to allow
ot her enployees to secure these gains w thout participating in
the process defeats the inherent purpose of having a bargaining
unit. He expressed concern that this HB 37 is even before the
| egi sl ature. He offered his belief in the National Labor

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- April 13, 2009



Rel ations Act and the Public Enployee Relations Act. The
federal acts do not currently need anendnents or changes. He
urged the legislature to not needlessly anmend the | aws. He
stated that HB 37 would nake the existing bargaining units |ess
secure in their position, weaken safe work place rules, |ower
wages and benefits, and tilt t he bal ance of t he
enpl oyer/ enpl oyee relationship unfavorably with respect to the
enpl oyee. He urged Chair Oson not to limt public testinony on
HB 37 to only two mnutes as the public's testinony should be
heard in full. He urged nenbers to vote no on HB 37.

5:09: 23 PM

JED WH TTAKER specul ated that about 40 people are currently
present who will probably not have chance to testify today. He
opined that the Right to Wrk law is a red herring that poses as
freedom for the individual but in reality is designed to weaken
uni ons, collective bargaining, and keep wages |ow. He offered
his belief that Right to Wrk states have a |ower per capita
income and a higher rate of poverty. He further opined that
unions brought Anmerica the mddle class through the m ninum
wage, the 40 hour work week, overtine pay, health care benefits,

pensi on plans, and worker safety. He noted that a healthy
econony is one in which people have noney in their pockets. He
stated that Henry Ford understood this and initially M. Ford
paid his enployees $5 per hour, which was an unheard of wage

He stated that M. Ford was asked why and he said, “Wwo will buy
my cars?’ He asserted that Republicans in the Congress blanme
the unions for the problenms. However, he recalled an article in
a recent Wall Street Journal which indicates the noney Genera

Motors and Ford has invested in their conpanies could have
bought Toyota, Honda, and N ssan outright. He offered his
belief that poor nanagenent and poor asset allocation has
happened, but instead of blam ng managenent, sone |egislators

bl ane the unions. He said, “I don’t understand why Republicans
hate unions. I’'m here to tell you wunions don't hate
Republ i cans. My union, the Laborers Local 341 endorsed Senator
[ Ted] Stevens and Representative Don Young.” He urged nenbers

to defeat HB 37

5:11: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN cl arified that he does not hold anything
agai nst uni ons. He assured nenbers he would look at HB 37 with

an open mnd. He reiterated that he is not anti-union.

5:11: 43 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 31- April 13, 2009



LARRY BENSON, President, American Postal W rkers Union, stated
that the U S is in a profound crisis. He opined that HB 37
lends to a further weakening of the econony by providing |ower
wages, jobs wthout benefits, and an inability for workers to
sustain a mddle class living standard. He said:

For thirty years Anerica’s economc elites and
political allies such as the national R ght to Wrk
Group have pursued polices designed to produce this

| ow- wage |evel econony just as HB 37 does. At the
sanme tine, policy makers have sought with sone success
to maintain high levels of consumer spending. Now,

the creation of this |owwage high-spending econony
has systenmatically destroyed the various wages that we
individually and collectively save and invest.
I nstead of an incone driven econony, we have becone an
econony driven by asset bubbles fueled wth cheap
debt . And the wultimate un-sustainability of this
strategy has brought us to our current crisis. The
assault on good jobs has proceeded on two fronts, in
the purely donmestic realm starting with the effective
abolition of the right to form unions in the private
sector; both the formal and informal structures that
encourage the growth of worker bargaining power have
been di smant| ed. HB 37 will further bring about this
di smant | i ng. This bill does nothing to inprove an
econony driven by wages but instead drives further
into the abyss an econony driven by asset bubbles
fueled wth cheap debt again, and will reduce Al aska's
wages and jeopardize enployer provided health care.
You know, “North to the Future” is Alaska’ s notto. HB

37 does not reflect our true Al askan spirit. It would
be an insult to pass a bill like this. The Anerican
Postal W rkers Union is opposed to this bill for the

reasons |’'ve stated and | urge you to oppose this so
called Right to Work bill

5:13: 59 PM

TI M MORGAN, Business Representative, Teansters Local 959, stated
that the groups he represents voted for union representation by
a majority vote, simlar to how legislators are elected by a
maj ority vote. He opined that the Right to Wrk bill would be
like saying if a person did not vote in support of the union,
that the person does not need to pay their dues to support their
wages. He asked nenbers to vote against HB 37. He offered his

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 32- April 13, 2009



belief that his children and grandchildren would not be able to
make a decent living in a Right to Wrk state.

5:15: 20 PM

DENNI S KNEBLE stated that he is a nenber of the |BEW He
related a scenario as a conparison between a small town and a
uni on such that when candidate wins by a mgjority, the taxes are
paid by all residents, regardl ess of whether taxes are increased
or decreased. He conpared this to how a union works, such that
when its nmenbers vote to pass a contract, everyone isS
represented regardless of their position. He asked nenbers to
oppose the Right to Work bill.

5:16: 29 PM

SCOIT SAMVONS stated that he is a nmenber of the Laborers Loca
341. He related that he noved to Alaska six years ago from his
honme state of Arkansas to seek a better living than he could
provide for his famly when living in Arkansas. He offered his
belief that Arkansas, which is a Right to Wrk state, sets the
prevailing wage on a Davis-Bacon job for a licensed electrician
at $13. 85. If he earned $2 over the $6.25 mninmum wage in
Arkansas, he would be considered doing very well. He indicated
that he researched Right to Wrk states and found that nost
states adopted Right to Wrk laws 50 years ago when Al aska
decided not to do so. Al aska avoided Right to Wrk which has
served the state well, and Al aska has prospered. Al aska’ s
unions provide workers wth excellent training, health, and
retirement benefits, which also provide enployers the benefits
of a highly skilled work force. Furt hernore, enployers need a
wel | -trai ned work force since nost people do not work in one job

from high school or college graduation until retirenment. He
mentioned that union jobs offer easy transferability of earned
benefits to nultiple conpanies. He enphasized the need for a

strong resident work force. He opined that strong unions create
a level playing field by setting the standards of enployee
conpensation for wunion and nonunion conpanies alike. He said,
“W t hout a strong voice to demand fair treat ment and
conpensation for workers, Alaska could easily sink to the
standard of |living enjoyed in Arkansas, M ssissippi, South
Carolina, etc. etc. Thank you very nuch.”

5:19: 03 PM

RON MCPHETERS, President, Laborers Local 341, explained that he
represents over 2,200 nenbers in Southcentral Al aska. He opined

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 33- April 13, 2009



that the Right to Wrk bill would hurt the state's econony,
degrade workers' rights, inflate health care costs, and endanger
enpl oyees. The real issue for himis that the |egislature would

even consider this bill, since it is such a radical bill, he
sai d. He offered his belief that the Ilegislature has a
responsibility to train nore Al askans. He asked, “Wy would

this commttee want to take out the organizations that wll
assure true Alaskan hire? This is not only true for the
| aborers, but is true for all unions in the state.” He offered
his belief that “Right to Wrk for less” |laws deliberately
intend to financially cripple unions. Wthout dues that unions
will not have any source of inconme, which would lead to an
unrepresented work force that would earn less, spend less, and
hurt Al aska’s econony. Wthout a union, workers are less likely
to have health care insurance and the top-notch training earned

t hrough apprenticeship prograns. “Wthout these added benefits,
who do you think will be having to pay for these uninsured
visits to the hospital,” he asked. He urged nenbers to vote no
on HB 37.

5:20:51 PM

CHAIR COLSON offered that the legislature considers about 500
bills each session and he disagrees with about half of them He
related that the commttee spends time hearing many bills that
many menbers do not support. One of the side effects of a 90-
day session is that it limts the anpunt public testinony. He
apol ogized to the public for the shortened public testinony
time. He stated that everyone who w shes to speak on HB 37 will
have an opportunity to provide testinony.

5:22: 05 PM
SERG O ACUNA stated that he is a union |aborer and spoke in

opposition to HB 37. He recalled that 22 states have the Right
to Wirk provision. He said, “Al aska does not need to becone the

23rd. | have personally has struggled with the consequences of
Right to Work law in other states such as Texas and Nevada.” He
opined that Right to Wrk states have | ower wages, disrespectfu

conditions, discrimnation, and unsafe working conditions. He
offered that his work is inportant and he takes pride in his
wor K. He stated that he needs to be able to earn enough to
provide for nore than just “beans and tortillas.” Al askans need

decent wages, fair and safe working conditions. He concluded by
stating “Alaska does not need Right to Wrk for less law,” he
sai d.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 34- April 13, 2009



5:23:33 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that HB 37 would be held over for further
consi derati on.

5:23:47 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
5:23 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 35- April 13, 2009



